
  1 

 

Council 
 
Contact Officer: Mr Steven Corrigan 
 
Tel: 01491 823049 
 
E-mail: steven.corrigan@southandvale.gov.uk 
 
Textphone:  18001 01491 823049 

Date: 4 December 2013 
 
Website: http://www.southoxon.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Summons to attend  

a meeting of Council 
 
to be held on  
 

THURSDAY 12 DECEMBER 2013  AT 10.00 AM 
 
at 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

OFFICES 

 
South Oxfordshire District Council aims to increase access to its public meetings.  
This meeting will be broadcast live on the council’s website and the record archived 
for future viewing.  You can view this broadcast at www.southoxon.gov.uk 
 

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include 
large print, Braille, audio cassette or CD, and email.  For this or any other special 
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on this 
agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting 

 
 
 
 
MARGARET REED 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
 
Note: Please remember to sign the attendance register. 

Public Document Pack



  2 

 

Agenda
1  Apologies   

 
To receive apologies for absence. 

 
2  Declaration of disclosable pecuniary interest   

 
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.    

 
3  Minutes of the previous meeting  (Pages 5 - 10) 

 
To adopt and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 24 
October 2013. 

 
4  Chairman's announcements   

 

5  Questions from the public and public participation   
 

6  Delivering accelerated housing growth in Science Vale   
 

(Cabinet member responsible: Mrs A Badcock) 
 
Cabinet, at its meeting on 5 December 2013, will consider a report seeking the 
approval of a project that will accelerate housing growth across the Science Vale 
area of South and Vale and ask that both Councils establish budgets to allow the 
project to proceed. 
 
The report of the Strategic Director, which Cabinet will consider on 5 
December, was circulated to all councillors with the Cabinet agenda. Please 
bring this report to the meeting. 
 
The recommendations of Cabinet will be circulated to councillors on Friday 6 
December.  

 
7  Council tax base 2014/15   

 
(Cabinet member responsible: Mr D Dodds) 
 
Cabinet, at its meeting on 5 December 2013, will consider a report on the council 
tax base for 2014/15. 
 
The report of the Head of Finance, which Cabinet will consider on 5 
December, was circulated to all councillors with the Cabinet agenda. Please 
bring this report to the meeting. 
 
The recommendations of Cabinet will be circulated to councillors on Friday 6 
December.  



  3 

 

 
8  Council tax reduction scheme grant for town and parish 

councils   
 

(Cabinet member responsible: Mr D Dodds) 
 
Cabinet, at its meeting on 5 December 2013, will consider a report on the total 
amount of council tax reduction scheme grant that will be passed down to town and 
parish councils for 2014/15, how the grant amounts for individual town and parish 
councils will be calculated, and the actual amounts for town and parish councils. 
 
The report of the Head of Finance, which Cabinet will consider on 5 
December, was circulated to all councillors with the Cabinet agenda. Please 
bring this report to the meeting. 
 
The recommendations of Cabinet will be circulated to councillors on Friday 6 
December.  

 
9  Councillors' allowances scheme   

 
The councillors’ allowances scheme allows for the allowances payable under the 
scheme to be increased up to the RPI announced in the preceding September 
subject to Council decision. Council is invited to agree the level at which to increase 
the basic and special responsibility allowances from 1 April 2014. 

 
10  Review of the council's constitution  (Pages 11 - 24) 

 
To consider the report of the head of legal and democratic services on proposed 
changes to the council’s constitution (attached). 

 
11  Questions under Council procedure rule 11   

 
None. 

 
12  Motions under Council procedure rule 41   

 
None. 

 
 
 
 
MARGARET REED 

Head of Legal and Democratic Services 



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Minutes 
 

OF A MEETING OF THE 
 

Council 

 

HELD AT 6.00 PM ON THURSDAY 24 OCTOBER 2013 

 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

OFFICES 
 

Present: 
 
Mrs Dorothy Brown (Chairman) 
 
Ms Anna Badcock, Mr Roger Bell, Mr Felix Bloomfield, Mr David Bretherton,  
Mrs Celia Collett, MBE, Mr Steve Connel, Mr Bernard Cooper, Mr John Cotton,  
Ms Kristina Crabbe, Mr Philip Cross, Mrs Margaret Davies, Mr Leo Docherty,  
Mr David Dodds, Mrs Ann Ducker, MBE, Mrs Elizabeth Gillespie, Mr Mark Gray,  
Mr Will Hall, Mrs Eleanor Hards, Mr Marcus Harris, Mr Neville F Harris,  
Mr Paul Harrison, Mr Stephen Harrod, Mr Marc Hiles, Ms Elizabeth Hodgkin,  
Ms Lynn Lloyd, Mrs Denise Macdonald, Mrs Judith Nimmo-Smith,  
Reverend Angie Paterson, Ms Anne Purse, Mr Christopher Quinton, Mr Alan Rooke, 
Mr Robert Simister, Mrs Pearl Slatter, Mr David Turner, Mrs Margaret Turner and  
Mr Michael Welply 
 

Apologies: 
 

Ms Joan Bland, Mrs Janet Carr, Mrs Pat Dawe, Dr Christopher Hood, 
Mr Malcolm Leonard, Mrs A Midwinter, Mr Bill Service and Mrs Jennifer Wood 
tendered apologies.  
 

Officers: David Buckle, Steven Corrigan, William Jacobs, Matt Prosser,  
Margaret Reed and  Anna Robinson 
 

18 Declaration of disclosable pecuniary interest  
 
Mr M Harris declared a disclosable pecuniary interest in item 9 – long term loan to 
Soha Housing – as he had a business relationship with Soha Housing. He left the 
room and took no part in the discussion or voting on this item.  
 
 

19 Minutes of the previous meeting, 18 July 2013  
 
RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the meeting held on 18 July 
2013 as a correct record and agree that the Chairman sign them as 
such. 
 

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 3

Page 5



 2 

20 Chairman's announcements  
 
The Chairman welcomed Mr Christopher Quinton back to the council following 
treatment for an illness. 
 

21 Questions from the public and public participation  
 
The Chairman reported that Mr Healy would address Council as organiser of the 
Didcot Wave petition. With Council’s agreement she took this item as the next item of 
business. 
 

22 Petition debate - Didcot Wave  
 
In accordance with the council’s Petition Scheme that provides for a Council debate 
of petitions containing more than 1,500 signatures, Council considered a petition 
handed in to "register opposition to South Oxfordshire District Council’s intention to 
close the Didcot Wave pool and gym to pay for the new sports facility to the North 
East and agree that it is essential the Wave stays open to serve the residents of the 
older established areas of Didcot".   
 
Mr Healy, the petition organiser, addressed Council on the petition and urged Council 
to save the pool and gym from closure when the planned new leisure facilities 
opened in Didcot. He made the following points: 

• The Wave had been starved of investment 

• The older established areas were ignored in terms of investment and facilities 

• The current users of the Wave would not be able to access the new facilities 
due to a lack of transport and mobility issues 

• The Wave offered a family fun environment as opposed to the planned 
Olympic type facility 

• The Wave delivered a profit  

• Didcot could support the Wave and the new leisure facility 

• Do not forget the older established areas of the district  
 
Mrs E Hards moved and Mrs M Davies seconded the following motion: 
 
“That South Oxfordshire District Council welcomes its first petition as a sign of 
community engagement with our work. 
 
Council acknowledges the popularity and strength of attachment and brand loyalty 
shown towards the Wave. 
 
Council recommends Cabinet consult widely with Didcot residents and those living 
within a 10 mile radius of Didcot on plans for Didcot Wave before any decisions are 
taken on its future and brings any proposals about the new Didcot Leisure Centre mix 
of facilities to Scrutiny Committee before making decisions that could impact on 
Didcot Wave”. 
 
In supporting the motion a number of councillors noted the success of the Wave in 
terms of footfall, profitability and performance against the industry benchmarks. 
Reference was made to the leisure and sports facilities strategy, agreed by Cabinet 
at its meeting on 3 March 2013, in which references are made to the replacement of 
and potential disposal of the Wave. 

Agenda Item 3

Page 6



 3 

 
RESOLVED: 

That South Oxfordshire District Council welcomes its first petition as a sign of 
community engagement with our work. 
 
Council acknowledges the popularity and strength of attachment and brand loyalty 
shown towards the Wave. 
 
Council recommends Cabinet consult widely with Didcot residents and those living 
within a 10 mile radius of Didcot on plans for Didcot Wave before any decisions are 
taken on its future and brings any proposals about the new Didcot Leisure Centre mix 
of facilities to Scrutiny Committee before making decisions that could impact on 
Didcot Wave. 
 

23 Treasury management outturn report 2012/13  
 
Council considered the Cabinet’s recommendation, made at its meeting on 
17 October 2013, on the outturn performance of the treasury management function 
for the financial year 2012/13 and the approval of the actual 2012/13 prudential 
indicators in accordance with the requirements of the CIPFA Treasury Management 
Code of Practice and Treasury Management Practice 6. 
 
Councillors extended their gratitude to Nikki Thomas and wished her well in her new 
job. 
 

RESOLVED: to  

1. approve the treasury management outturn report for 2012/13; 

2. approve the actual 2011/12 prudential indicators within the 
report of the head of finance to Cabinet on 17 October 2013. 

 

24 Council tax reduction scheme 2014/15 onwards  
 
Council considered the Cabinet’s recommendation, made at its meeting on 
17 October 2013 on a council tax reduction scheme for 2014/15. 

 
  RESOLVED: to 
 
(a) adopt the council tax reduction scheme commencing 1 April 2014, until such 

time as Council wishes to change the scheme, which will be the same scheme 
as adopted for 2013/14, except for the addition of (b); 

(b) increase by one per cent on 1 April each year, commencing 1 April 2014, the 
personal allowances and non-dependent deductions for working age 
claimants. 

25 Gambling Policy  
 
Council considered the Cabinet’s recommendation, made at its meeting on 
17 October 2013, on the Joint Gambling Policy. 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 7



 4 

In response to a question Mrs Ducker stated that the council had not permitted any 
casinos within the district under the previous policy. Although the proposed policy did 
not rule this out any application would be carefully judged on its merits.  
 
RESOLVED: to 
 
(a) adopt the proposed Joint Gambling Policy as attached to the report of the 

head of legal and democratic services to Cabinet on 17 October 2013; 
 
(b) authorise the head of legal and democratic services to make minor editorial 

changes to the Joint Gambling Policy; 
 
(c) authorise the head of legal and democratic services to publish the Joint       

Gambling Policy in accordance with the Gambling Act 2005 (Licensing 
Authority Policy Statement)(England and Wales) Regulations 2006.  

 

26 Long term loan to Soha Housing  
 
Council considered Cabinet’s recommendation, made at its meeting on 17 October 
2013, on a long term loan to Soha Housing to provide a long term investment stream 
to the council and to fund affordable housing schemes locally. 
 

RESOLVED: to approve the addition of £15,000,000 to the approved capital 
programme to provide long term funding to Soha Housing for the purpose of 
providing additional social housing in Oxfordshire.  
 

27 Community governance review - final terms of reference  
 
Council considered the report of the chief executive on draft terms of reference for a 
community governance review – a review of parish arrangements within the district. 
 
The Chairman reported that since the publication of the report South Moreton Parish 
Council had requested that the council review the parish boundary between South 
Moreton and Aston Tirrold. 
 
RESOLVED: to 

 
1. approve the terms of reference set out in Appendix A attached to the report of 

the chief executive to Council on 24 October 2013 for a community governance 
review of South Oxfordshire subject to the addition of a review of the parish 
boundary between South Moreton and Aston Tirrold; and  

 
2. authorise the chief executive, in consultation with the members of the 

Community Governance Review Working Group, to add additional items to the 
terms of reference where appropriate up to the end of November 2013.   

 

28 Review of the council's Constitution  
 
Council considered the report of the head of legal and democratic services on 
proposed changes to the council’s constitution.  
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 8



 5 

RESOLVED: to  

1. note the Leader’s delegations set out in appendix 1 to the report of the head of 
legal and democratic services to Council on 24 October 2013 for inclusion in the 
council’s constitution; 

2. notes the Leader’s delegation to the head of health and housing  in respect of the 
Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 as set out in paragraph seven of the report of the 
head of legal and democratic services to Council on 24 October 2013; 

3. notes the Leader’s revised scheme of delegation attached at appendix two to the 
report of the head of legal and democratic services to Council on 24 October 
2013; 

4. agree the revised financial procedure rules attached at appendix three to the 
report of the head of legal and democratic services to Council on 24 October 
2013; 

5. agree the proposed amendments to officer delegations set out in appendix four to 
the report of the head of legal and democratic services to Council on 24 October 
2013; 

6. authorise the head of legal and democratic services to make the necessary 
changes to the council’s constitution to reflect the changes set out in the report of 
the head of legal and democratic services to Council on 24 October 2013; 

7.  authorise the head of legal and democratic services to make any minor or   
consequential amendments to the constitution required for clarification, 
consistency and compliance with the council’s style guide. 

 

29 Questions under Council procedure rule 11  
 
None. 
 

30 Motions under Council procedure rule 41  
 
None. 
 
 
The meeting closed at 7.15pm  
 
 
 
 
 
Chairman Date 

Agenda Item 3

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3

Page 10



  

Council Report 

 

 Report of Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

Author: Steven Corrigan 

Tel: 01491 823049 

E-mail: steven.corrigan@southandvale.gov.uk 

To: COUNCIL 

DATE: 12 December 2013  

Review of the council’s constitution 

Recommendations 

That Council: 
1. agrees the revised delegation 1.2 to the head of economy, leisure and 

property attached as appendix one to this report; 

2. agrees the delegation in respect of the national non-domestic rates 1 form 
(NNDR1) set out in paragraph seven of this report; 

3. agrees the amendments to the financial procedure rules set out in 
paragraph 12 of this report; 

4. agrees the revised budget and policy framework procedure rules and budget 
setting protocol set out in appendix two to this report; 

5. agrees the proposed amendments to officer delegation and Cabinet and 
Council procedure rules set out in appendix three to this report; 

6. authorises the head of legal and democratic services to make the necessary 
changes to the council’s constitution to reflect the changes set out in this 
report; 

7.   authorises the head of legal and democratic services to make any minor or   
consequential amendments to the constitution required for clarification, 
consistency and compliance with the council’s style guide. 

             

 

Purpose of report 

1. To consider proposed amendments to the constitution. 

Strategic objectives 

2. The constitution underpins all of the council’s areas of activities and, 
therefore, contributes to the achievement of all its strategic objectives. 

Agenda Item 10

Page 11



  

Background 

3. Officers have undertaken a review of the constitution in accordance with 
the Council’s decision when it first approved the constitution in 2001, and 
in pursuance of the requirements of Section 37 of the Local Government 
Act 2000 to keep the constitution under review.  The Constitution Review 
Task Group, comprising councillors Bretherton, Dodds (as substitute for 
Mrs Ducker), Hards, Midwinter and Wood, considered the proposals at a 
meeting on 26 November 2013 and the views expressed at that meeting 
are included in this report. 

Delegation 1.2 – land and property matters 

4. Delegation 1.2 currently authorises the head of economy, leisure and 
property to authorise a number of land and property transactions provided 
the best possible price is obtained and no statutory protection is likely to 
be obtained. 

5. The task group supported a proposed amendment of these provisos 
because they are too restrictive and not always applicable.  

6. The revised delegation 1.2 is attached with deleted words shown by a 
strikethrough and additional words shown in bold. 

 

National non-domestic rates 1 form (NNDR1)  

7. At its meeting on 13 December 2012 Council considered a report on a new 
requirement, under the Local Government Finance Act 1988 (as amended 
by the Local Government Finance Act 2012), to submit a NNDR1 to the 
Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) by 31 
January. To avoid the need for a special meeting Council authorised the 
strategic director (section 151) officer, in consultation with the Cabinet 
member for finance to approve and submit the Council’s national non-
domestic rates 1 form (NNDR1) for 2013/2014. As the completion of this 
form is a technical matter and the financial detail will be included in the 
subsequent budget report to Council, the task group supported the 
following ongoing delegation: 

To authorise the chief finance officer (section 151 officer), in consultation 
with the Cabinet member for finance to approve and submit the Council’s 
national non-domestic rates 1 form (NNDR1) each year as required by the 
Local Government Finance Act 1988 (as amended by the Local 
Government Finance Act 2012). 

Financial Procedure Rules 

8. At its meeting in 24 October Council agreed revised financial procedure 
rules (FPRs). Since that meeting officers have encountered issues which 
have informed proposed amendments to the FPRs which the task group 
support.   

Agenda Item 10

Page 12



  

9. Under the FPRs agreed by Council in October the responsibility for 
creating a budget is the responsibility of Council. The approval of these 
budgets by Council authorises officers to incur expenditure subject to 
compliance with the requirements of the council’s constitution.   

10. Under these rules any external government grant provided for a specific 
purpose or any additional fees and charges income cannot be spent until 
Council has agreed the budget.  

11. The following budgetary issues require a solution: 
 

• New grant income received after the budget has been set for which a 
budget has to be created in order to give authority to spend the money. 

 

• Additional income from fees and charges received in the year that 
leads to additional costs that require a budget to give authority to 
spend. 

 

• Increased receipts of insurance income from insurance claims. 
 
12. The task group supported the following amendments to the FPRs to 

address this: 

• The Leader of council in consultation with the chief executive and chief 
finance officer may increase the revenue or capital budget after 
considering a request from the relevant head of service where the 
council has: 

 
a. received government grant outside of the usual budget setting 

cycle for which no budget exists. 
 
b. received additional income for fees and charges that has led to 

additional costs that require a budget to give authority to spend. 
 

c. received additional income from insurance claims. 
 

In all instances a budget no greater than the increase in income can be 
created. 

 

Budget setting process 

13. The existing budget and policy framework procedure rules provide for a 
consultation period of not less than six weeks.  At the end of the 
consultation period, Cabinet draws up firm budget or policy proposals for 
submission to Council.  Last year the late receipt of the government 
settlement meant that initial budget proposals were not available until 
January.  In light of the likely late receipt of the government settlement this 
year the task group considered amendments to the budget and policy 
framework and the provision of a budget setting protocol. The budget 

Agenda Item 10

Page 13



  

protocol supported by the task group and the revised budget and policy 
framework procedure rules are attached at appendix two.  

Scheme of delegation 

14. Attached at appendix three are proposed changes, with reasons, to the 
scheme of delegation and Cabinet and Council procedure rules. 

Revised constitution 

15. Council is requested to approve the changes set out in this report for 
implementation from 2 January 2014. 

Financial Implications 

16. The democratic services budget for printing will meet the costs of 
producing copies   of the amended constitution. 

Legal Implications 

17. Section 37 of the Local Government Act 2000 requires the Council to keep 
its constitution under review. 

Conclusion 

18. This report sets out a number of proposals to amend the constitution. 
Officers recommend that Council supports these proposals, and 
authorises the head of legal and democratic services to make these 
changes and any further minor or consequential amendments to the 
constitution. 

 

Background paper: Paper to the Constitution Review Task Group  

Agenda Item 10

Page 14



  

   Appendix one 

Head of economy, leisure and property 

(Car parks, emergency planning, leisure including arts, sports; economic 
development; property including facilities management and mobile home 
parks)  
 

HEAD OF ECONOMY, LEISURE AND PROPERTY 
 

Ref Function 
 

Consultation 
(where applicable) 
 

1.0 LAND AND PROPERTY MATTERS  

1.1 To manage the council’s land and property 
portfolio. 

 

 

1.2 To authorise the following types of land and 
property transactions provided the best possible 
price is obtained and no statutory protection is 
likely to be obtained:- provided that: 

(i) in the case of paragraph (a), the 
consideration is the best that can 
reasonably be obtained unless a general 
consent of the Secretary of State applies; 
and 

(ii) all disposals shall be on the best 
financial terms unless otherwise agreed by 
the chief finance officer in consultation with 
the relevant Cabinet member. 

 

 

 (a) To approve the freehold or leasehold 
sale of land and property where the land or 
property transaction is below £50,000. 

 

Head of legal and 
democratic services  

 (b) To approve and accept surrenders or 
terminations of leases and licences and 
determine applications for the 
assignment, sub lettings and transfer of 
leases and licences and the granting of 
sub-leases and under leases and other 
applications for consent required by 
lessees. 
 

Head of legal and 
democratic services 

Agenda Item 10

Page 15



  

HEAD OF ECONOMY, LEISURE AND PROPERTY 
 

Ref Function 
 

Consultation 
(where applicable) 
 

 (c) To determine the renewal of leases and 
tenancies. 
 

 

Cabinet member/head 
of legal and democratic 
services where the 
annual rental value 
exceeds £10,000 

 

 (d) To grant new leases and tenancies up to 
an annual rental value limit of £50,000. 
 

 

Cabinet member/head 
of legal and democratic 
services where the 
annual rental value 
exceeds £10,000 

 

 (e) To negotiate and approve rent reviews 
and licence fee reviews. 

 

Head of legal and 
democratic services 

 (f) To determine applications for the release 
or variation of covenants. 

 

Head of legal and 
democratic services 

 (g) To grant wayleaves, easements, licences 
and other rights of users in respect of 
council owned land or property. 
 

Head of legal and 
democratic services 

 (h) To dedicate land owned by the council as 
a highway. 

 

Head of legal and 
democratic services 

 (i) To enter into agreements under section 
278 of the Highways Act 1980. 
 

Head of legal and 
democratic services 

 (j) To determine requests from developers 
for the council to adopt land on housing 
developments, subject to the payment of 
a commuted sum and the land being 
transferred at a nominal sum. 

 

 

 (k) To serve notices required in relation to the 
acquisition, disposal, rental, leasing and 
management of land and property. 
 

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 16



  

 

Appendix two 

Budget and policy framework 

procedure rules 

The framework for cabinet decisions 

1. The council will be responsible for the adoption of its budget and policy 
framework as set out in Article 4.  Once a budget or a policy framework is 
in place, it will be the responsibility of the cabinet to implement it. 

 

Process for developing the framework 

2. The process by which the budget and policy framework will be developed 
is: 

 
(a) The cabinet will publicise a timetable for making proposals to the 

council for the adoption of any plan, strategy or budget that forms part 
of the budget and policy framework.  This will be included in the cabinet 
work programme.  It will give details of the arrangements for 
consultation.  All members of the scrutiny committee will also be 
notified.  

 
(b) The budget setting process shall follow the budget preparation protocol  

agreed by the Constitution Review Task Group. 
 

(c) Once the cabinet has approved the firm proposals, the proper officer 
will refer them at the earliest opportunity to the council for decision. 

 
(d) In reaching a decision, the council may adopt the cabinet’s proposals, 

amend them, refer them back to the cabinet for further consideration, 
or, subject to paragraphs (e) and (f) substitute its own proposals in their 
place. 

 
(e) If it accepts the cabinet’s recommendation without amendment, the 

council may make a decision that has immediate effect.  If it objects to 
any of the proposals, it must inform the leader and instruct him/her to 
require the cabinet to reconsider the proposals in light of the 
objections. Such reconsideration must take place within the period 
specified by the council, which shall be not less than five working days. 

 
(f) Following reconsideration by the cabinet, the leader may submit 

revised proposals to the council, together with reasons for the 
amendments, or inform the council of any disagreement the cabinet 
has with the council’s objections.  The proper officer will then call a 

Agenda Item 10

Page 17



  

Council meeting to be held within a further ten working days. At that 
meeting, the council may approve the cabinet’s proposals, or take a 
different decision, having taken into account any amendments the 
cabinet made to its original proposals, the reasons for the 
amendments, any disagreement the cabinet has with the council’s 
objections and the reasons for that disagreement. 

 
(g) The council’s decision at that meeting shall be final and effective 

immediately. 
 

(h) The decision shall then be made public in accordance with Article 4, 
and shall be implemented immediately. 

 
(i) In approving the budget and policy framework, the council will also 

specify the extent of virement within the budget and degree of in-year 
changes to the policy framework which may be undertaken by the 
cabinet, in accordance with paragraphs 9 to 11 of these rules (virement 
and in-year adjustments).  Any other changes to the policy and 
budgetary framework are reserved to the council. 

 

Decisions outside the budget or policy framework 

3. Subject to the provisions of paragraph 9 and 10 (virement) the cabinet and 
any officers discharging cabinet functions may only take decisions which 
are in line with the budget and policy framework.  If any of these bodies or 
persons wishes to make a decision which is contrary to the policy 
framework, or contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the budget 
approved by full Council, then that decision may only be taken by the 
council, subject to paragraphs 5 to 8 below. 

 
4. If the cabinet or any officers discharging cabinet functions want to make 

such a decision, they shall take advice from the monitoring officer and/or 
the chief finance officer as to whether the decision they want to make 
would be contrary to the policy framework, or contrary to or not wholly in 
accordance with the budget. If the advice of either of those officers is that 
the decision would not be in line with the existing budget and/or policy 
framework, then the decision must be referred by that body or person to 
the council for decision, unless the decision is a matter of urgency, in 
which case the provisions in the following section (urgent decisions 
outside the budget and policy framework) shall apply. 

 

Urgent decisions outside the budget or policy framework 

5. The cabinet, or officers discharging cabinet functions, may take a decision 
which is contrary to the council’s policy framework or contrary to or not 
wholly in accordance with the budget approved by full Council if the 
decision is a matter of urgency or in the event of a disaster or emergency.  
An urgent decision may only be taken: 

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 18



  

(a) if it is not practical to convene a quorate meeting of the full Council; 
and 

(b) if the Chairman of the scrutiny committee agrees that the decision is a 
matter of urgency.  

 
6. The reasons why it is not practical to convene a quorate meeting of full 

Council and the Chairman of the scrutiny committee’s consent to the 
decision being taken as a matter of urgency must be noted on the record 
of the decision.  In the absence of the Chairman of the scrutiny committee 
the consent of the Chair of the council, and in the absence of both, the 
Vice-Chair, will be sufficient. 

 
7. In cases of disaster or emergency, strategic directors may take decisions 

outside of the policy framework and, with the approval of the chief finance 
officer, shall be authorised to approve expenditure outside of the budget in 
accordance with the financial procedure rules.  

 
8. Following a decision taken as a matter of urgency, or in the case of a 

disaster or emergency, the decision taker will provide a full report to the 
next Council meeting explaining the decision, the reasons for it and why 
the decision was treated as such a matter. 

 

Virement and supplementary estimates 

9. The council will have the revenue cost centres and capital projects as set 
out in the approved revenue budget and capital programme, which will be 
agreed annually. 

 
10. In implementing Council policy, the cabinet, or officers discharging cabinet 

functions, shall not exceed those budgets.  However, the cabinet, or 
officers discharging cabinet functions, shall be entitled to vire between 
revenue budgets or between capital projects, and agree supplementary 
estimates in accordance with the procedures and limits set out in the 
financial procedure rules. Beyond these limits, approval to any virement or 
supplementary estimate shall require the approval of the full Council. 

 

In-year changes to policy framework 

11. The responsibility for agreeing the budget and policy framework lies with 
the council, and decisions by the cabinet, or officers discharging cabinet 
functions, must be in line with it.  No changes to any policy or strategy 
which make up the policy framework may be made by the cabinet, or 
officers discharging cabinet functions, except those changes: 

 
(a) which will result in the closure or discontinuance of a service or part of 

a service to meet a budgetary constraint; 
 

(b) necessary to ensure compliance with the law, ministerial direction or 
government guidance; 

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 19



  

(c) in relation to the policy framework in respect of a policy which would 
normally be agreed annually by the council following consultation, but 
where the existing policy document is silent on the matter under 
consideration. 

 

Call-in of decisions outside the budget or policy framework 

12. Where the scrutiny committee is of the opinion that a cabinet decision is, 
or if made would be, contrary to the policy framework, or contrary to or not 
wholly in accordance with the council’s budget, then it shall seek advice 
from the monitoring officer and/or chief finance officer. 

 
13. In respect of functions that are the responsibility of the cabinet, the 

monitoring officer’s report and/or chief finance officer’s report shall be to 
the cabinet with a copy to every councillor.  Regardless of whether the 
decision is delegated or not, the cabinet must meet to decide what action 
to take in respect of the monitoring officer’s report and to prepare a report 
to Council in the event that the monitoring officer or the chief finance 
officer conclude that the decision was a departure, and to a  scrutiny 
committee if the monitoring officer or the chief finance officer conclude that 
the decision was not a departure. 

 
14. If the decision has yet to be made, or has been made but not yet 

implemented, and the advice from the monitoring officer and/or the chief 
finance officer is that the decision is or would be contrary to the policy 
framework or contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the budget, a  
scrutiny committee may refer the matter to Council.  In such cases, no 
further action will be taken in respect of the decision or its implementation 
until the council has met and considered the matter. The council shall 
meet within ten working days of the request by a scrutiny committee. At 
the meeting it will receive a report of the decision or proposals and the 
advice of the monitoring officer and/or the chief finance officer. The council 
may: 

 
(a) endorse a decision or proposal of the cabinet decision taker as falling 

within the existing budget and policy framework. In this case no further 
action is required, save that the decision of the council be minuted and 
circulated to all councillors in the normal way; or 

(b) amend the council’s financial regulations or policy concerned to 
encompass the decision or proposal of the body or individual 
responsible for that cabinet function and agree to the decision with 
immediate effect. In this case, no further action is required save that 
the decision of the council be minuted and circulated to all councillors 
in the normal way; or 

(c) where the council accepts that the decision or proposal is contrary to 
the policy framework or contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the 
budget, and does not amend the existing framework to accommodate 
it, require the cabinet to reconsider the matter in accordance with the 
advice of either the monitoring officer or chief finance officer. 

Agenda Item 10

Page 20



  

Budget setting protocol agreed by the Constitution Review 
Task Group 

 

• Growth bids and savings ideas to be shared with cabinet and to be 
scrutinised at Star Chambers. 

 

• Private (not public) budget briefing to be given to scrutiny members in 
December.  Other councillors will be invited. The content of the briefing 
is yet to be agreed but is likely to be based around the appendices 
usually produced for the scrutiny reports (i.e. Medium Term Financial 
Plan, essential growth bids, discretionary growth bids and savings 
ideas under consideration by cabinet).   

 

• This would signal the start of a consultation with all councillors on the 
growth bids and savings ideas and will be the point at which all 
councillors can lobby the cabinet on what should or should not be 
included in the revenue and capital budgets. 

 

• Discretionary growth bids, savings ideas and the Medium Term 
Financial Plan to be added to the website within 15 working days from 
publication of the governments’ financial settlement or by the end of the 
first full working week in January, whichever is the later and businesses 
will be directed to them and invited to comment.  

 

• No change in the process from the production of the February cabinet 
report onwards, although this report will incorporate all necessary 
information previously only reported in the December scrutiny report. 

 
 
November 2013 
  
 

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 21



  

Appendix three 
Changes to the scheme of delegation, Cabinet and Council 
procedure rules 
 

References in part 3 of 
the constitution – 
scheme of delegation 

Proposal Reason for proposing 
change 

Council procedure rule 
31 and the appendix to 
council procedure rules 

Make clear that county 
councillors are not 
entitled to their own five 
minute address at a 
planning committee 
meeting – they must 
share the appropriate five 
minutes designated for 
objectors or supporters. 

Provide clarity/avoid 
confusion and provide 
clear written guidance.  

New 1. Authorise the 
Head of Legal and 
Democratic 
Services to 
approve up to two 
consecutive three 
month periods of 
non-attendance at 
meetings by 
councillors with 
the agreement of 
group leaders.  

2. Amend the terms 
of reference of the 
Audit and 
Corporate 
Governance 
Committee to 
agree up to two 
consecutive three 
month periods of 
non-attendance at 
meetings by 
councillors in the 
absence of 
agreement by 
group leaders. 
Council will 

Avoids need to call a 
special Council meeting. 
 
  

Agenda Item 10

Page 22



  

continue to 
consider any 
requests beyond 
those periods. 

Paragraph 12 of the 
Cabinet procedure rules 

Include the following 
amended wording 
(deleted words with 
strikethrough new words 
in bold): 
 
that if the leader is 
present he/she will 
preside and in his/her 
absence, then a person 
appointed to do so by 
those present shall 
preside the deputy 
leader shall preside.  
 

To avoid the need for the 
appointment of a 
chairman at the meeting 
in the absence of the 
Leader of council. 

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	10 Review of the council's constitution

